1982

Robert B. Vance v. Paul V. Fordham : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an action involving the revocation of the Plaintiff's license to practice medicine as an osteopathic physician and surgeon, by the Department of Registration. The revocation order was entered by the Department of Registration on February 2, 1981, at the conclusion of a hearing before the Osteopathic Committee. The committee recommended revocation of Dr. Vance's license, for "unprofessional conduct" under Utah Code Annotated 1953 § 58-12-36(15).

The decision was appealed to the District Court, of Salt Lake County under the provisions of Utah Code Annotated 1953 § 58-1-36 by filing an "action" as provided.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

The District Court treated the appeal simply as a review, ordered the parties to file appeal briefs, and based upon a review of the transcript of hearing before the Osteopathic Committee, and the parties brief's, the District Court affirmed the order of the Department of Registration, concluding that "This Court may not substitute its judgment of factual matters for that of the fact finding body unless that body has acted capriciously or arbitrarily, or unless its conclusions are unsupported by the evidence."

Further, prior to the final ruling, the Plaintiff had discovered that one of the three member Osteopathic Committee was disqualified and barred from serving thereon under the provisions of Utah Code Annotated 1953 § 58-1-6. A motion to

dismiss was immediately filed with the District Court and the Court ruled that although the member was disqualified, she was a de facto officer acting under color of law, and even if the decision was voidable, because of the lack of qualification of one committee member, the point was raised for the first time on appeal, and is therefore untimely.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

The Plaintiff seeks the reversal of the revocation order and to have the Plaintiff's license to practice medicine restored as a matter of law, or in the alternative to have the matter remanded for a trial before the District Court.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

This matter is an appeal from an order entered February 2, 1981, by the Department of Registration revoking the professional license of the Plaintiff, Dr. Robert B. Vance, to practice medicine as an osteopathic physician and surgeon. The order was made pursuant to the recommendation of the three member Osteopathic Committee appointed pursuant to the provisions of Utah Code Annotated 1953 § 58-1-5 and 6.

The Department of Registration originally filed a Complaint against the Plaintiff, alleging acts of unprofessional conduct in regard to 35 of the more than 8000 patients the Plaintiff has successfully treated over the past ten years of his practice. [Record p. 173-189] Included in the 35 patients were three "bogus" patients who were sent to the Doctor, one by

a local television station, to obtain chelation treatments, and who admittedly falsefied her medical history to the Doctor to obtain said treatment. Of the 35 patients included in the Complaint, many refused to testify against the Plaintiff, and the committee received evidence on only 9, and made adverse findings on only 8 of the patients, including the three "non patients."

Dr. Robert B. Vance has a distinguished professional background, nationally recognized in the field of Preventative Medicine. He obtained a B.S. Degree with a major in Biochemistry from Beloit College, Beloit, Wisconsin in 1954. He then studied at the prestigious Kirksville College of Osteopathic Medicine in Kirksville, Missouri graduating in June 1958. He then completed a full time rotating internship averaging 92 hours per week on duty at the Bay Osteopathic Hospital, Bay City, Michigan. He is licensed in the States of Michigan, Indiana, Ohio, Missouri and Utah.

In 1961 he commenced his full time practice in the State of Utah, where he has continuously practiced medicine on a full time basis during the past 21 years, placing great emphasis in his practice upon preventative medicine and nutrition in the care and treatment of his patients. [Record p. 981-983] Over the period of 20 years the Doctor has dedicated literally hundreds of hours to research and study with many of the leading practitioners and pioneers in the field of medicine [Record p. 984-989] averaging 8-10 medical conventions and seminars each year to advance his medical knowledge and ability in order to

bring aid and comfort to suffering patients. The Doctor testified that any of the modalities or therapies included in his practice have been studied by him for a minimum of three years. [Record p. 906] Among many of his distinguished accomplishments, he has been certified by the American Academy of Medical Preventics, as a Diplomate in Chelation Therapy. [Record p. 1171]

In spite of the specialized, exhaustive and extensive studies and training, the record reveals an overt bias and prejudice on the part of the three osteopaths below as to the modalities employed by Dr. Vance.

The three members of the Osteopathic Committee consisted of the following: Dr. Katherine V. Greenwood, Dr. Leland W. Shafer and Dr. Kago Hase.

It is admitted, that Dr. Greenwood was unqualified to sit as a member of the Osteopathic Committee. She was sworn in a member of the committee on January 5, 1981, the first day of the hearing herein. [Record p. 139] However she was first licensed to practice in Utah on June 6, 1978, some two years and 7 months before her appointment to the committee (Statute requires 5 years). [Record p. 140] At the date of her application for licensing on April 19, 1978 she was a resident of Iowa (Statute requires 3 years residency). [Record p. 141-142] The knowledge of her disqualification was learned by Plaintiff for the first time during the appeal.

The committee held hearings in Salt Lake County, based upon the petition of the Department of Registration. Of the 35

patients regarding whom Complaints were made, findings were made on only 8 of these former patients, involving the charge that Dr. Vance improperly diagnosed and treated these patients for conditions that did not exist; or used procedures or methods not accepted by the standards of the profession; or that he failed to follow the standards of the profession; and specifically concluding that the use of Chelation Therapy, or the prescribing of Laetrile (Amygdalin B-17), or the use of Kinesiology to test for food allergies, are unacceptable methods of practice by "medical standards". [Record p. 170-172]

The findings were supported by hearsay testimony of the former patients and three MD's and one D.O. who testified as to their findings in treatment of the patients. However three noted physicians testified that the methods of practice used by Dr. Vance although not used in the mainstream of MD's in practice today, are clearly accepted methods of treatment and widely used throughout the United States today by hundreds of Doctors who are involved in preventative medicine. [Record p. Dr. Gordon p. 623-793; Dr. Halstead p. 1110-1174, Dr. Gerber p. 1007-1104]

Nevertheless, the Committee recommended revocation, and based thereon the Department of Registration issued the revocation order on February 6, 1981. [Record p. 169]

The Plaintiff then filed its appeal action in the District Court of Salt Lake County. During the pendency of the appeal, the Plaintiff discovered the fact that Dr. Greenwood, one of the three osteopaths who served on the committee, was

unqualified to serve as a member, as provided by the statute. Plaintiff immediately filed a Motion to Dismiss based on the grounds that the committee was never duly constituted under the provisions of Utah Code Annotated 1953 § 58-1-5 and 6 [Record p. 79] and its decision must therefore be void.

After arguments to the Court, the Court denied Plaintiff's Motion to Dismiss, concluding that although Dr. Greenwood was disqualified to be appointed, she was a de facto officer, that even without Dr. Greenwood's vote, a majority of the committee (2) recommended the revocation; and even if the decision were voidable, Appellant's motion was not timely because it was raised for the first time on appeal. [Record p. 127, 147-148]

The Court thereafter ordered the parties to file briefs informing them that the decision would be made based upon the briefs and the transcript of the hearing before the committee. Based thereon, the District Court affirmed the revocation of the Plaintiff's license.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE OSTEOPATHIC COMMITTEE WAS NEVER DULY CONSTITUTED AND
THEREFORE LACKED JURISDICTION TO ACT

Under the laws of the State of Utah, the Department of Registration is a duly recognized administrative "agency" as defined in Utah Code Annotated 1953 §63-46-3(1), authorized to adjudicate, and grant or withhold licenses. It is basic law

that as a creature of statute this agency has only such power as is specifically defined by the statutes granting the Department licensing or revocation powers, and Courts will not interfere with the decisions of an administrative tribunal unless it appears that it acted in excess of its powers. See Central Bank and Trust v. Brimhall, 28 Utah 2d 14, 497 P2d 638 (1972)

The Utah Supreme Court has made clear that in proceedings before an administrative tribunal it is requisite primarily that a party must be given the opportunity to have notice, an opportunity to be heard and defend, in an orderly proceeding adapted to the nature of the case, before a tribunal having jurisdiction of the cause. See Empire Electric Assn. v. Public Service Comm. 604 P2d 930 (Utah 1979)

The Osteopathic Committee is authorized under the provisions of Utah Code Annotated 1953 § 58-1-5 which provides as follows:

The functions of the Department of Registration shall be exercised by the director of registration under the supervision of the commission of the Department of Business Regulations, and when so provided, with the collaboration and assistance of representative committees of the several professions, trades and occupations as follows:

(13) For osteopathic physicians and surgeons, a committee of **THREE** members each of whom shall be a graduate of a chartered college of osteopathy of recognized standing. (Emphasis added)

The qualifications of the **THREE** committee members is defined in Utah Code Annotated 1953 § 58-1-6 as follows:

...Each member of a committee **MUST HAVE** had a license to practice in this state for a period of **FIVE YEARS** immediately prior to his

appointment and be in good standing in the profession, trade or occupation for which appointed. ...

...each member SHALL HAVE been a resident for a period of three years, and shall be domiciled within the State of Utah. [Emphasis added]

Dr. Katherine V. Greenwood, one of the three members of the osteopathic committee which heard the evidence and recommended the revocation, was disqualified and barred from acting as a committee member. Dr. Greenwood was licensed to practice in Utah on June 6, 1978 [Record p. 140] just 2 years and 7 months prior to her purported appointment to the committee on January 5, 1981. [Record p. 139] At the time of her application for licensing, on April 19, 1978, she was a resident of Bettendorf, Iowa. [Record p. 141]

The language of the statute creating the committee is mandatory language, which cannot be altered by the act of the director of registration, nor by a ruling of the District Court by calling her a de facto officer.

There is no provision in Utah Code Annotated 1953, Title 58 Chapter 1 for any other number in the committee but THREE, and unless the legislature provides otherwise, a committee of two qualified members and 1 disqualified Doctor does not constitute the statutory committee, and being an administrative tribunal can only be vested with the power as specifically granted by the act creating it. In re Whitmer, in and for Salt Lake County, 515 P2d 617, 30 Ut 2d 206 91973) Administrative agencies are creatures of statute and their power is totally dependent upon statutes, so they must find within the

statute, warrant for the exercise of any authority which they claim.

The general law regarding the effect of the participation in the determination by one disqualified member is discussed in 1 American Jurisprudence § 69 p. 864 as follows:

Participation in a determination by one disqualified member of a tribunal of three affects the action of the whole body. It is generally held that if a disqualified member of an administrative agency participates in the hearing and determination it makes the decision void or voidable at the instance of a party aggrieved who has made timely protest, even though his presence was not required to constitute a quorum, or a majority of the board could have acted legally without him.

A determination made or participated in by a disqualified officer is merely voidable where only the common law rule as to disqualification is violated and proceeding is reviewable, but if participation by a disqualified officer is prohibited by statute, the determination is void! (Emphasis added)

See also Stahl v. Ringgold County, 187 Iowa 1342, 175 NW 772, 11 ALR 185, (1964) In re Weston Benefit Assessment Special Road District, 294 SW 2d 353 (Mo App 1956)

In this matter, the participation of the disqualified member is clearly prohibited by statute and accordingly their determination is void, and jurisdiction never vested in the committee.

POINT II

REVOCATION OF APPELLANTS LICENSE BY THE PURPORTED COMMITTEE CONSTITUTED A DENIAL OF DUE PROCESS OF LAW

Although the Supreme Court of Utah has made clear that

the granting of a professional license is a privilege under Utah Code Annotated 1953 § 58-1-1.1 or § 58-12-27, and as emunicated in State v. Hoffman, 558 P2d 602 (Utah 1976), nevertheless the Courts have uniformly held, that once the license is granted, it is a "property right" in the sense that a Board may not deprive the holder of the license, without satisfying the requirements of "due process". See Cross v. Colorado State Board of Dental Examiners, 552 P2d 38, 37 Colo App. 504 (1966); State Board of Registration for Professional Engineers v. Antonio, 409 P2d 505, 159 Colo 51 (1965). The Supreme Court of Utah has recognized that a license is entitled to the safeguards of due process. See: Athay v. State Department of Business Regulations, 626 P2d 965 (Utah 1981); In re Gudmundson, 556 P2d 212 (Utah 1976).

This Court has made clear that the essentials of due process are

"1) the existence of an appropriate tribunal 2) inquiry into the merits of the question presented; 3) notice of the purpose of the inquiry; 4) opportunity to appear in person or by counsel; 5) fair opportunity to be heard; and 6) judgment rendered in the record thus made." State of Utah in re LGW; Utah Supreme Court, Dec No. 17689 (Nov. 3, 1981)

See also Cuddy v. State Department of Public Asst., 442 P2d 617, 74 Wash 2d 17 (1969); Dodds v. Ward 418 P2d 629 (Okla 1966)

In spite of those safeguards, the Plaintiff herein was judged by a committee which was not authorized under the laws of Utah and to allow the deprivation of his license to practice medicine, to be accomplished by that committee in violation of

Title 58 safeguards, is a denial of due process under the constitution.

It is not enough to reason that the remaining two members voted for the revocation and they constitute a majority of the committee. In the case of Board of Medical Examiners v. Steward, 102 A 2d 248 (Ct. of app MD 1954), a Doctors license revocation was reversed because the three member medical board was improperly constituted, a substitute, without statutory authority, having been appointed. There the attorney general argued that since a majority could revoke and the vote was unanimous, the law was gratified. The Circuit Court ruled that the Doctor was entitled to a fair and impartial hearing before a legally constituted board and the board was not legally constituted when it heard the complaint.

Participation of the disqualified member would obviously taint the decision of the board. Dr. Greenwood was not a passive member of the board. She became an active interrogator on the board, even making her own statements of what the medical standards of the profession consist of. [Record p. p. 833-837 and 1094-1109] There is no way one could conclude by examining the record, that the decision was not tainted by this disqualified Doctor's participation therein.

POINT III

THE COMMITTEE FAILED TO ESTABLISH ANY STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AS REQUIRED BY STATUTE

The committee further failed to publish any standards

to give notice to the Plaintiff as to what conduct is prohibited. Utah Code Annotated 1953 § 58-1-13 provides:

"The following functions and duties shall be exercised or performed by the department of registration, but only upon the action and report in writing of the appropriate representative committee:

...(6) Defining unprofessional conduct, except as herein otherwise provided

(7) Promulgating and enforcing such rules and regulations as may be advocated by the representative committee of the several professions, trades and occupations for the protection or best interest of the public..."

Neither the Osteopathic Committee nor the department of registration have at any time published any standards of conduct for osteopaths. At the conclusion of the hearing, the committee made the following finding: [Record p. 170]

1. We find that osteopathic physicians and surgeons should maintain and uphold the same standards of care as medical doctors in caring for and treating their patients. When a physician assumes primary care of a patient by advising a patient to discontinue medications or instructions from a previous physician, the new physician should do a complete physical examination and record such. The physical examination should include at least examination of heart, lungs and abdomen. No intravenous solutions should be given without a physical examination (including heart and lungs) being performed. We also find that a physician must be in attendance when intravenous solutions are given unless it is an emergency. We find that Robert B. Vance did not abide by and follow these standards in his treatment of patients and in particular in his care and treatment of James Nickeson.

These standards were never established by the committee prior to the hearing, and in fact most were statements given to the committee by Dr. Katherine Greenwood, the disqualified board member, during the hearing, [Record p.

833-837 and p. 1094-1109] as her opinion of medical standards without supporting testimony of medical witnesses.

The Idaho Supreme Court in the case of Tuma v. Board of Nursing, 593 P2d 711, 100 Ida 74 (1979) reversed the revocation of a professional license concluding that the board cannot suspend a license for unprofessional conduct by merely hearing evidence of licensee's conduct and then concluding that it was unprofessional, but that the board must first publish rules and regulations to warn the licensee of the prohibited conduct.

If the Department had even stated in the complaint, what standards of care the committee had established and the conduct Dr. Vance was being charged with as being "unprofessional", then in the presentation of his case, the Plaintiff could have known that he must present evidence regarding the giving of "physical exams", and "at least examination of the heart and lungs" as well as whether or not he was "in attendance when intravaneous solutions are given", and whether intravaneous solutions were given without a physical examination being performed. These violations of the standards of care were for the first time published and their violation charged against the Doctor in the committee's Findings of Fact; at the Conclusion of the hearing. [Record p. 170]

As the Court in Tuma, supra at p. 717 concluded:

"It is important to note also that the void-for-vagueness doctrine is two-pronged. not only are those whose activities are proscribed entitled to definite standards by which they may be guided, but it is equally important that the standards are there to

guide those officers or agencies required to pass judgment on licensees called to account for their conduct."

In Ex parte McNulty, 77 Cal. 164, 19 P. 237, 239 (1888), the Court expressed concern over the possibility that an individual might lose substantial rights "for the violation of any vague, undefined notion of unprofessional conduct which might, after the fact, be enteretained by certain individuals constituting a board of examiners." (Emphasis added.) To which must be added that the membership of the Committee is a changing thing, and as the Committee make-up changes, it cannot be said that notions of unprofessional conduct may not also change. There must be standards against which conduct can be uniformly judged by Courts and administrative agencies.

The Supreme Court of Arizona, in Arizona State Board of Medical Examiners v. Clark, 97 Ariz. 205, 214, 398 P. 2d 908, 915 (1965), stated as follows:

"As applied in the licensing and revocation cases 'unprofessional conduct' has been construed to include serious offense, such as intentional violations of law or recognized professional standards. ..."

"There must be a 'conscious and culpable act amounting to a willful design to do that which is denounced as a unlawful professional practice.'"

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