1982

Robert B. Vance v. Paul V. Fordham : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

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

Utah Code Annotated, §58-12-35.1(5) states:

"Any person who shall feel aggrieved by any action of the board in denying, revoking, or suspending his license may within 30 days appeal therefrom to the district court, which court shall affirm or reverse the action of the board.

* * *

The district court shall affirm the action of the board and the director unless the court finds that the record of the proceedings reveals that the board and director acted capriciously, arbitrarily or outside the scope of their authority." (emphasis added)

Thus, appellate jurisdiction of all issues of the "record" lies with the District Court, not with the Supreme Court. As stated in the statute, above, it is the district court that

determines if the board or director acted "capriciously, arbitrarily, or outside the scope of their authority."

Furthermore, the language of the statute clearly states that the court (District Court) looks at (reviews) the record. Record of what? Record of the administrative proceedings. What proceedings? The proceedings before the particular board from which the Director has taken his action, causing the licensee to claim to be aggrieved. Certainly, there is nothing in the specific language of the legislatively mandated procedures as they relate to licensed practitioners under §58-12-35.1, U.C.A., which could justify taking a position that the proceeding before the District Court could be other than a review of the record of the hearing before the Osteopathic Committee.

While it is true that U.C.A. §58-1-36 is not entirely clear, the provision is a general provision applying to boards that do not have their own statutory procedures on appeal. The Osteopathic Committee has specific procedures to be followed when an aggrieved licensee desires to appeal the decision of the Director of the Division of Registration. U.C.A. §58-12-35.1(5) specifically delineates what appellants may do and what jurisdiction the District Court has in determining the correctness of the administrative committee. Without question, the specific language of the statute under which this action was appealed and as specifically cited by Appellant [See Notice of Appeal filed by appellant (R-2,3)] presents to the court the "record" for the court to determine that a fair hearing was held and that based on the record the action of the Committee was not arbitrary, capricious or outside the

This procedure was followed by the Appellate Court (District Court). A decision was rendered sustaining the actions of the Osteopathic Committee. The opinion issued by the court, dated December 3, 1981 and entitled "Memorandum Opinion on Appeal" (emphasis added; R-249-51) states in particularity:

"Nothing in plaintiff's Memorandum on Appeal or in the record demonstrates any excursion by the Committee or the Director beyond the scope of their statutory authority. . .

It should be noted that the transcript of the hearing before the Osteopathic Committee consists of six volumes, numbering 1189 pages. The Court has read the entire transcript, and examined all of the Exhibits described in Respondents' Filing of Record of Board Hearing, together with the extensive Memoranda filed by counsel for the parties.

* * * *

. . . While it is true that some of the testimony was in conflict, Dr. Vance denying some of the allegations made by former patients, there is an evidentiary basis for the Committee's findings, and no basis for a claim of denial of due process. The Committee was at liberty to make its own judgments on credibility.

* * * * *

. . . This Court may not substitute its judgment on factual matters for that of the fact-finding body unless that body has clearly acted capriciously or arbitrarily, or unless its conclusions are unsupported by the evidence. Neither circumstance exists here. The record suggests that the Committee was conservative in its findings rather than otherwise, and those findings entirely support the recommended Order entered by the Director. That Order is hereby affirmed." (Emphasis added).

Respondents encourage the Court to review the entire Opinion. What is desired to be emphasized is that the Appellate Judge reviewed everything, pondered deeply and made her decision after much thought. This decision "on appeal" (R-249) was not a "fly-by-night" decision. Her Honor specifically said: "The record suggests th

conservative in its findings. . . " (emphasis added). Respondents point out that the entire record before the Court below, including Appellant's own brief (R-193) refers to the matter being before the District Court "on appeal."

Rule 81(d) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure specifically states that those rules apply to administrative matters (appeals, etc.) unless there is specific statutory language to the contrary. Taken literally, as it should be, and if U.C.A. §58-12-35.1(5) did not exist, then the argument could be made that the appeal would be to the Supreme Court. But this is not the case. U.C.A. §58-23-35.1(5) is clear that the District Court, not the Supreme Court, has the responsibility, obligation, and jurisdiction to make the appellate decision.

Had the Legislature intended it to be otherwise, the statute would have placed that responsibility on the Supreme Court by statute as it has done in numerous other instances. For example, Decisions of the Utah Liquor Control Commission (U.C.A. §32-1-32.6), Industrial Commission (U.C.A. §35-1-83) and the Public Service Commission (U.C.A. §54-7-16) are appealed directly to the Supreme Court. In the case of the Tax Commission, the Legislature has given two options: obtain a trial de novo in District Court or go directly to the Supreme Court (U.C.A. §54-24-2).

Thus, it is seen that the jurisdiction for appeal lies with the District Court. The appeal was heard (consisting of a review of the entire record made before the Osteopathic Committee), a decision rendered, and only issues of constitutional import can now be raised before this body. The Utah

Constitution, Article VIII, Section 9, provides that appeals from Justice courts lie to the District Court "on both questions of law and fact, with such limitations and restrictions as shall be provided by law; and the decision of the District Courts on such appeals shall be final, except in cases involving the validity or constitutionality of a statute." (emphasis added).

This court has ruled in numerous cases that it will not review the evidence again, but limits its review from appeals to the District Courts to constitutional issues only. In the case of State v. Robinson, 23 U.2d 78, 457 P. 2d 969 (1969) the Utah Supreme Court dismissed the appeal of a misdemeanor conviction "on its own" because the constitutionality of a statute was not challenged. That appeal, as is the case in this instant appeal, is based on everything but the challenge of a statute. The Court said:

"The appellant was convicted of a misdemeanor in a justice of the peace court. He appealed to the District Court where on a trial de novo, he was again convicted. He now attempts to appeal to this court and claims error below in that the court improperly received evidence at the trial. He makes no contention that the statute under which he is charged is invalid.

[Quotes Article VIII, Section 9]

This court on a number of occasions has held that in cases such as this the decision of the district court is final and that a further appeal would not lie except where the validity or constitutionality of a statute is invoked." (Emphasis added.)

Also, the Legislature amended U.C.A. §78-4-11 in 1977 and in 1981 as it relates to appeals to the District Court from the Circuit Court. There as well, the decision is final.

Though the constitutional provisions cited above do not expressly include administrative appeals, there is no valid reason why the procedures for cases arising in administrative agencies should be any different. To say there is a difference is a great injustice. Under the prohibition of a right to appeal to this court would be individuals who could lose their right to liberty by being placed in jail, as a result of a conviction before the Justice or Circuit Courts and yet allowing those with, for example, a day's suspension of regulatory licenses to appeal to the Supreme Court, after having a District Court affirm the decision of the regulatory body. In the present case, although it is a revocation, instead of a limited suspension, the legal rationale and issues are still the same--the appellant has no right to a "de novo appeal." It is not even allowed in other appeals from the District Court by statute and constitution as discussed above.

Based on the foregoing, respondent contends that the appellant has had his appeal and has lost. He is not entitled to a second appeal. He has not claimed the invalidity or unconstitutionality of any statute. All of the issues except two have been briefed, argued and ruled on in the Appellate (District) Court. The two issues that were not raised and argued below are points III and VI. They were never raised below, are not argued to be a denial of any constitutional rights and this court in numerous cases has established the most basic premise before it that new issues cannot be raised for the first time on appeal (and in this case for the first time on a second appeal)! These issues were also never

raised at the hearing before the Osteopathic Committee. Certainly, at this point of time, Appellant has "waived" these issues. They cannot be allowed at this point even if the Court allows other issues of this appeal to be heard.

In essence, Appellant's "appeal" is improperly before this body and should be dismissed. This court should not review again all of the evidence that has already been reviewed by the Appellate Judge and ruled on. Further, the Court should treat this case no differently than those under Article VIII, Section 9 of the Utah Constitution. There have been no challenges to the constitutionality of statutes, and, therefore, no appeal lies. Lastly, the claim of inadequate regulations has been waived on two occasions. No matter what this Court decides as to the other arguments, this issue should be rejected by this court as untimely and inappropriate.

The proper course of action for this Court is to dismiss this appeal for lack of any jurisdiction over the purported "appeal" to this body. If the Court does believe it has the right to hear some argument it should be limited only to the constitutionality of the Board proceeding as alleged in its make-up. All other arguments are inappropriate and should not be considered.

Respondents, however, not knowing the view of the court on these issues, deem it advisable to respond to all arguments even though they feel this Court should not review them. As such, they will be treated accordingly.

POINT II:

THE PARTICIPATION OF DR. GREENWOOD ON THE
OSTEOPATHIC COMMITTEE DID NOT INVALIDATE OR
MAKE VOID THE PROCEEDINGS.

Appellant begins his attack on the decision of the Osteo-
pathic Committee by adulterating both the findings of the
District Court and the actual situation that presented it-
self. By propounding that interpretation, Appellant is at-
tempting to confuse the issues before this Court--issues
that were fully briefed and ruled on earlier.

The record is void of any "admission" that Dr. Greenwood
was not qualified to sit as a member of the Committee. Ap-
pellant presents that position as one of the undisputed "facts"
of the case. (See Appellant's Brief, Page 4.) Respondents
have consistently maintained and the Court so found that Dr.
Greenwood was a "de facto officer who acted under color of
law and authority" (R-149). As such, the Court found that
as a "de facto officer" she was authorized to sit on the
Committee and rule on the issues presented to it in this
case.

The entire argument of Appellant as presented by his
Motion to Dismiss (R 79-80) and the accompanying Memorandum
(R 83-91) centered around residency and licensing require-
ments "within" the State of Utah. In essence, Appellant
cites U.C.A. §58-1-6 as the basis for some "monstrous" rea-
son which precludes Dr. Greenwood from being able to render
any opinion at all as to the propriety of Appellant's ac-
tions. This position is absurd.

Nowhere has Dr. Greenwood's competence, professional

ability, knowledge, or credentials even been questioned. In fact, Appellant hasn't even done so in this appeal. Appellant knows that Dr. Greenwood, a practicing psychologist as her specialty in Osteopathic Medicine, is eminently qualified and knowledgeable in the field of Osteopathic Medicine. She recieved her degree from the College of Osteopathic Medicine in Des Moines, Iowa, in June of 1968 and has been licensed in and practiced in Missouri, Iowa, Wisconsin and Utah continually since July of 1969. (R. 141-144.) If anything, the fact that she has had experience in Osteopathic Medicine in three other states (Missouri, Iowa and Wisconsin) before coming to Utah to live, adds credence to the position that she has a broad understanding of theory and practice in her profession.

In support of this position, Respondents refer to the leading authority in the area of a physician's care and knowledge in going from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. In Riley v. Layton, 329 F.2d 53 (1964), a San Francisco Physician was called as an expert witness regarding medical practices in Moab, Utah. Certainly, here, the discrepancies of the size and sophistication of jurisdictions are obvious. Riley held that a physician has adequate knowledge to testify as an expert witness in a case if he is a physician in the community or similar community. The San Francisco physician qualified under this definition to present expert testimony for situations in Moab, Utah.

Certainly, Dr. Greenwood had the experience and knowledge from similar communities such as Des Moines, Iowa (roughly

equivalent to the communities here) to be qualified to sit as an expert in peer review. Medical knowledge and theory are fast becoming, and in many respects have become, cosmopolitan in nature, being uniform in all areas of the country.

Respondent maintains that Dr. Greenwood was qualified in every way professionally to sit on the Board. The record substantiates this fact and Appellant himself does not dispute it.

In essence, a highly qualified physician sat "de facto" under color of authority to review the evidence in the original hearing below. Respondents deem it extremely important to point out to this Court that it wasn't just any "Tom, Dick or Harry" that was pulled off the street to "fill" the Board position. Never has Dr. Greenwood's competence or professional qualifications been questioned.

With this keenly in mind, Respondents now point out that all Appellant could do to attack the Committee's decision is cite a five year licensure rule which can well be seen as a procedural dinosaur, that has no bearing on the correctness of a decision and itself has been seen by the legislature as a requirement having no bearing on the substantive outcome of cases heard by committees. This requirement was repealed by the Utah Legislature in the 1981 Session.

The Court did find in its Order that based on the residency and licensure requirements as per Utah Code Ann. §58-1-6, she was not qualified to "be appointed." (R.-149.) Nonetheless, the Court held, as previously stated, that Dr. Greenwood sat as a "de facto" member. Her qualifications

professionally qualified her to sit "de facto" and render a fair decision with the other members of the Committee.

Appellant's brief is essentially a restatement of his memorandum accompanying the Motion to Dismiss in the Court below. Only two cases not cited in that memorandum have been added here. Nonetheless, Respondent deems it necessary to respond with basically the same argument and cases as it did below so this court can be fully advised of Respondent's position.

Counsel for Appellant himself advocated a position before the District Court that he has now changed. The Court and counsel for Appellant had a lengthy dialogue about this matter where counsel took a different position.

Appellant cites 1 Am.Jur. §69 (Appellant's Brief, Page 9) declaring before this body that the decision is void. Yet before the District Court, he maintained:

MR. WALKER: But in saying that our statement is that therefore it was not a duly constituted committee, therefore jurisdiction never vested in that committee.

THE COURT: Well, if that is true, then there was no jurisdiction to do anything that that board has done during the entire period that Dr. Greenwood has sat on it.

MR. WALKER: Your Honor, that is the whole point. The case law says that it may be voidable at the instance of an aggrieved party.

* * *

THE COURT: If I rule that that decision was void for lack of jurisdiction, then there is no more jurisdiction, every order that the board has entered is likewise void.

MR. WALKER: Your Honor, quoting the case that they cite in their brief, --

THE COURT: Let me be sure I understand

your position first. Do you claim that that the order is void for lack of jurisdiction, or do you simply claim that it is voidable on some due process grounds?

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